A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group O

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Meeting of the Membership
Mal‘ch 24, 2021 @ 1:00 p.m. INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Via Conference Call & Livestreaming
Call to Order

Approval of Minutes
2.1 Approval of the February 24, 2021 Minutes of the Meeting of the Membership (Action Item) (Pages 2-4)

Reports / Action Items / Information Items:

3.1 Financial Report (Informational) (Pages 5-8)

3.2 Finance & Audit Committee Update (Informational) (Pages 9-10)
a) Committee Self-Evaluation (Informational) (Pages 11-14)

33 Audited Financial Statements (Action Item) (Pages 15-44)

34 2020 — Investment Report (Action Item) (Pages 45-47)

3.5 Governance Committee Report (Informational) (Pages 48-49)
a) Committee Self-Evaluation (Informational) (Pages 50-54)
b) Board Self-Evaluation (Informational) (Page 55)

Review and Adoption of Policies, Reports and Committee Charters: (Separate Package)

2020 - Mission Statement, Performance Measures and Results (Action Item) (Pages 2-12)
2021 - Mission Statement and Performance Measures (Action Item) (Pages 13-23)

2020 - Public Authorities Report (Action Item) (Pages 24-84)

Procurement Policy (Action Item) (Pages 85-89)

Sexual Harassment Policy (Action Item) (Pages 90-98)

Employee Compensation Program (Action Item) (Pages 99-100)

e

Re-Adopt Policies & Charters

7. Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest Policy (Action Item) (Pages 101-106)
8. Investment & Deposit Policy (Action Item) (Pages 107-114)

9. Whistleblower Policy and Procedures (Action Item) (Pages 115-117)

10. Defense & Indemnification Policy (Action Item) (Page 118)

11, Finance & Audit Committee Charter (Action Item) (Pages 119-123)

12, Governance Committee Charter (Action Item) (Pages 124-127)

13. Property Disposition Guidelines (Action Item) (Pages 128-134)
14. Real Property Acquisition Policy (Action Item) (Pages 135-136)

15. Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy (Action Item) (Page 137).

16. Travel, Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy (Action Item) (Pages 138-144)

17 Statement of Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors (Action Item) (Pages 145-147)

18. Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members (Action Item) (Page 148)
19, Corporate Credit Card Policy (Action Item) (Pages 149-151) )

Management Team Reports:

5.1 2020 Year in Review

Adjournment- Next Meeting April 28, 2021 (Annual Meeting)

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 » fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com



Draft
Subject to Board Approval

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

DATE AND PLACE:

LIVE STREAMED:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

(ILDC)

February 24, 2021, held via telephone conference. Governor Cuomo’s
Executive Order 202.1, as amended from time to time, issued in
response to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) crisis, suspended Article 7 of
the Public Officers Law to the extent necessary to permit any public
body to take actions without permitting in public in-person access to
such meetings and authorized such meetings to be held remotely by
conference call or other similar service, provided the public has the
ability to view or listen to such proceedings and that the meeting is
recorded and transcribed.

This Board meeting is being live-streamed and made accessible on the
Erie County Industrial Development Agency website at
www.ecidany.com.

Denise Abbott, Hon. April Baskin, Richard Lipsitz, Jr., Hon. Mark C.
Poloncarz and Maria Whyte

Hon. Byron W. Brown and Hon. Howard Johnson

John Cappellino, President & CEO; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial
Officer; Karen M. Fiala, Vice President/Secretary; Jerry Manhard,
CFO; Grant Lesswing, Business Development Officer; Brian Krygier,
Systems Analyst; Carrie Hocieniec, Administrative Coordinator; Beth
O’Keefe, Business Development Officer; Atiqa Abidi, Assistant
Treasurer; Lori Szewczyk, Director of Grants; Robbie Ann
McPherson, Director of Marketing and Communications, and
Robert G. Murray, Esq., General Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

Andrew Federick, Erie County Senior Economic Development
Specialist

There being a quorum present at 12:46 p.m., the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation was called to order by its

Chair, Mr. Poloncarz.

Page 1 of 3



MINUTES

Ms. Whyte moved, and Mr. Lipsitz seconded to approve of the January 27, 2021 minutes.
Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and the minutes were unanimously approved.

REPORTS / ACTION ITEMS / INFORMATION ITEMS

Financial Report. Ms. Profic presented the January 2021 financial report. Ms. Profic
noted that the balance sheet indicates the ILDC finished the year with total assets of $9.4 million
and fund balance of $7.0 million. The majority of assets are capital assets, namely land that
ILDC owns. There is $1.9M of cash including $1.7M of grant revenue advanced by ESD under
the Buffalo Billion II grant agreement. The majority of cash is designated for the purchase of the
second phase of land at the Bethlehem Steel property. The ILDC ended 2020 with net income of
$782,000. This was a result of $874,000 of grant revenue from ECIDA that was used to
purchase the Angola Airport property. The property was capitalized as an asset on the balance
sheet, not expensed. At the end of January, the ILDC’s total assets were $9.4M, a slight decrease
from the end of December. There were four loans closed from the County micro-loan fund
totaling $140,000 during January. The January income statement shows $850 of revenue and
$5,000 of expenses netting a $4,200 net loss in January. The year-to-date income statement is
the same at this point but also includes a comparison to January 2020. Mr. Poloncarz directed
that the report be received and filed.

Approval of Contract for Engineering Services for Water & Sewer at Bethlehem Steel
Site. Mr. Cappellino reviewed the proposed contract for engineering services for water and
Sewer.

Ms. Abbott moved and Ms. Whyte seconded to approve of the contract for engineering
services for water and sewer at the Bethlehem Steel site. Mr. Poloncarz then called for the vote
and the following resolution was unanimously approved:

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC”) AUTHORIZING THE
ILDC TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH C&S COMPANIES FOR THE
PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES FOR SANITARY
AND WATERLINE EXTENSIONS AT THE FORMER BETHLEHEM STEEL
SITE

Approval of Angola Ag. Park-Erie County Grant Contract Master Plan GEIS. Mr.
Cappellino reviewed the proposed Erie County Grant Contract Master Plan GEIS.

Ms. Whyte spoke in favor of the master plan.
Ms. Whyte moved and Mr. Lipsitz seconded to approve of the Erie County Grant

Contract Master Plan GEIS at the Angola Ag Park. Mr. Poloncarz then called for the vote and
the following resolution was unanimously approved:

Page 2 of 3



RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC”) TO ENTER INTO A
CERTAIN AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF ERIE (“COUNTY”) TO
FUND THE MASTER PLAN AND GENERIC ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF DEVELOPING THE ANGOLA AGRI-

BUSINESS PARK

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Poloncarz adjourned the meeting at
12:57 p.m.

Dated: February 24, 2021

Karen M. Fiala, Secretary

Page 3 of 3



Industrial Land Development Corp.

Financial Statements
As of February 28, 2021




INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")

Balance Sheet
February 28, 2021

February 2021 January 2021 December 2020
ASSETS:
Restricted Cash * $ 1,769,064 $ 1,792,738 $ 1,944,866
Grants Receivable 831,208 514,051 514,051
Loans Receivable, net 174,782 175,374 35,966
Prepaid Acquisition Costs 24,110 24,110 24,110
Total Loan Assets 2,799,165 2,506,274 2,518,993
Capital Assets 6,879,989 6,877,681 6,877,681
Total Assets $ 9,679,154 $ 9,383,955 3 9,396,674
LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS:
Accounts Payable $ - $ 19,099 § 32,609
Due to/(from) ECIDA 342,493 288,473 283,473
Other Liabilities - 2,306,292 2,038,094 2,038,091
Total Liabilities 2,648,785 2,345,666 2,354.173
Restricted Fund Balance 7,030,369 7,038,289 7,042,501
Total Liabilities & Net Assets ) 9,679,154 $ 9,383,955 $ 9,396,674
Loan Portfolio Summary: February 2021 January 2021 December 2020
# of Loans 7 7 3

* Cash is invested in interest bearing accounts at M&T Bank.
The maximum FDIC insured amount is $250,000 with the remainder collateralized
with government obligations by the financial institution.




INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")

REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans
Interest Income - Cash & Inv
Proceeds from Land Sales
Other Income
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA
Professional Services
General Office Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant
Other grant revenue
Industrial Land Park costs
Angola Ag Park grant costs
Other grant expenses

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

Income Statement
Month of February 2021

Actual vs. Budget

Actual Budget Variance
$ 58 § 37 % (317)
40 2 39
- 20,833 {20,833)
750 750 -
848 21,960 (21,111)
$ 5000 % 5,000 -

3,578 6,667 (3,088)

(1,491) - (1,491)

129 2,281 (2,1562)

7,217 13,948 (6,731)

- 129,583 (129,583)

(48,960) 16,667 (65,627)

- 8,333 (8,333)

48,960 245,833 (196,873)

(60) (16,667) 16,607

(1,491) (8,333) 6,842

- (245,833) 245,833

(1,551) 129,583 (131,134)

$ (7,920) $ 137,566 $ (145,485)

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on budget.



INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Income Statement
Year to Date: February 28, 2021

| Actual vs. Budget | [ Actual vs. Prior Year
Actual Budget Variance Actual Prior Year Variance
REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans $ 117 $ 750 $ (633) 3 117 3 82 9 35
Interest Income - Cash & Inv. 85 3 83 85 1 84
Proceeds from Land Sales - 41,667 (41,667) - - -
Other Income 1,500 1,500 - 1,500 - 1,500
Total Revenues 1,702 43,920 (42,217) 1,702 83 1,619
EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA $ 10,000 § 10,000 - $ 10,000 § 9667 § 333
Professional Services 3,203 13,333 (10,130) 3,203 14,821 (11,617)
General Office Expenses 441 - 441 441 - 441
Other Expenses 129 4,563 (4,433) 129 405 (275)
Total Expenses 13,774 27,896 (14,122} 13,774 24,892 (11,118)
SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD - 259,167 (259,167) - - -
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA 29,621 33,333 (3,712) 29,621 80,000 (50,379)
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant 11,743 16,667 (4,924) 11,743 - 11,743
Other grant revenue 48,960 491,667 (442,707) 48,960 1,274 47,686
Industrial Land Park costs (78,641) (33,333) (45,308) (78,641) (79,479) 838
Angola Ag Park grant costs (11,743) (16,667) 4,924 (11,743) - (11,743)
Other grant expenses - (491,667) 491,667 - (1,274) 1,274
(60) 259,167 (259,227) (60) 521 (581)
NET INCOME/(LOSS): 3 (12132) $ 275191 § (287,322) $ (12132) % (24,288) % 12,155

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on budget.



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

To: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC Boards of Directors
From: Michael Szukala, Chair

Date: March 24, 2021

Re: Finance & Audit Committee Report

In accordance with its Committee Charter, the Finance & Audit Committee is required to “report its actions and
recommendations to the Board at each regular meeting of the Board following a meeting of the Finance and Audit
Committee and when otherwise requested by the Board”. This report is prepared to satisfy this requirement.

A joint meeting of the ECIDA, RDC & ILDC Finance & Audit Committee was held on March 17, 2021.
Committee members present were: Michael Szukala, Chair, Penny Beckwith, Glenn Nellis, and William
Witzleben. The following items were reviewed:

1) Freed Maxick CPAs Report including Draft 2020 Audited Financial Statements

The Agency’s auditors presented the Draft 2020 Audited Financial Statements for ECIDA, RDC, and

ILDC (copies of which are included in respective Board packages).

e The independent auditors expressed an unmodified (clean) opinion on the financial statements of all
entities. This type of opinion indicates that the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the corporations as of December 31, 2020 and the changes in
financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

e No uncorrected audit adjustments were noted.

¢ No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal controls noted.

2) Public Authorities 2020 Report
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the Public Authorities 2020 Report required under the
Public Authorities Law and recommended that it be approved by their respective Boards.

3) 2020 Investment Reports
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the 2020 Investment Reports, which are required under
the Public Authorities Law and recommended that they be approved by their respective Boards.

4) Investment and Deposit Policy (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee reviewed the Investment and Deposit Policy and recommended
that it be approved by their respective Boards.

5) Finance & Audit Committee Charter (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee reviewed the joint Committee Charter and recommended that it be
approved by their respective Boards.

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203  ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com



6) Corporate Credit Card Policy (Re-adoption)
The joint Finance & Audit Committee approved the Corporate Credit Card policy and reviewed the card

activity over the past year as required by the policy.

7) Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation
The joint Finance & Audit Committee prepared a report that documents the Committee’s activities for

2020 as required under the Public Authorities Law.

8) The Committee reviewed Management’s Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls, a
document prepared by management based on internal control processes and procedures of the
organization. The document will be posted on the website as required by the ABO.

9) The Committee reviewed a document entitled “The Strategic Audit Committee: Navigating 2021” by

Deloitte’s Center for Board Effectiveness to satisfy the educational requirements set forth in the Finance
& Audit Committee Charter.

10



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)

2020 Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

Responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Finance & Audit Committee, as mandated under Section
2825 of the New York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) providing
assistance to members of the Agency in fulfilling their fiduciary responsibilities relating to
accounting, reporting, and regulatory compliance practices; (ii) maintaining, through regular
meetings, direct communication between the members of the Agency and the Agency’s independent
accountants and auditors; (iii) maintaining direct communication between members of the Agency
and the governmental authorities having audit authority or fiscal oversight of the Agency; (iv)
approving the budget of the Agency for submission to the Board; (v) approving and/or directing the
transfers of moneys under the budget; (vi) recommending to the Board the level of cash reserves
and the level of fund balances of the Agency.

Pen

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation Yes No ding Comments

1. Are the members of the Finance & Audit XK | OO O
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and do individuals appointed to
the Finance & Audit Committee possess
the necessary skills to understand the
duties and functions of the Finance & Audit
Committee and are familiar with corporate
financial and accounting practices?

2. Is each member of the Finance & Audit X | O ]
Committee an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Finance & Audit
Committee members, who are members of
the Agency, comply with the conflict of
interest provisions applicable to public
officers under Article 18 of the New York
General Municipal Law?

3. Did the Finance & Audit Committee meeta | X] | [ | [0 | The Finance & Audit
minimum of twice each calendar year? Committee met on

3/20/20, 8/18/20,

9/16/20, and 10/16/20.

11



Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation Yes

4. Were meeting notices and agendas X
prepared for each meeting and provided to
Finance & Audit Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

Comments

5. Did the Finance & Audit Committee X
develop the Agency's audit practices,
which should address independent
auditors and financial statements; internal
controls, compliance, and risk assessment;
special investigations; and other
responsibilities?

See Questions #6-#10
below.

6. Did the Finance & Audit Committee: S

(a) Recommend to the Board the appointment
of independent auditors, establish the
compensation to be paid to the auditors,
and provide oversight of the audit services
provided by the independent auditor?

(b) Establish procedures for the engagement of
the independent auditors to provide
permitted audited services?

(c) Review and approve the Agency's audited
financial statements, associated
management letter, and all other auditor
communications?

(d) Review significant accounting and reporting
issues and understand their impact on the
financial statements of the Agency?

(e) Meet with the Agency's independent auditor
at least annually to discuss the financial
statements of the Agency and any issues
that may have arisen during the audit?

(f) Review and discuss any significant risks
reported in the independent audit and
assess the responsiveness of
management's follow-up activities regarding
same?

In March of 2020, Freed
Maxick completed audits
of the ECIDA, RDC, and
ILDC for the year ended
12/31/19. The auditors
issued an unmodified
(clean) opinion that the
statements fairly
presented the financial
position of the above
referenced corporations.
The auditors also
indicated that the audits
did not uncover any
material weaknesses in
internal control and there
were no instances of
non-compliance in
accordance with
government auditing
standards.

12



Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

7.

Did the Finance & Audit Committee review
management’'s assessment of the
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal
controls and review the actions taken by
management on the independent
accountants’ and auditors’ suggestions for
correcting weaknesses in the Agency's
internal controls, regulatory compliance,
and organizational structure and
operations?

Comments

Management's
assessment of the
effectiveness of internal
controls was reviewed
with the Committee at
the March 2020
meeting. The March
2020 audit reports did
not identify any internal
control deficiencies or
material weaknesses.

(c)

Did the Finance & Audit Committee:

Ensure that the Agency has a confidential
mechanism for individuals to report
suspected fraudulent activities, allegations
of corruption, fraud, criminal activity,
conflicts of interest by directors, officers, or
employees of the Agency or anyone
having business dealings with the Agency?

Develop procedures for the receipt,
retention, investigation, or referral of
complaints concerning accounting, internal
controls, and auditing?

Request and oversee special
investigations as needed or refer specific
issues to the Board or appropriate
committee for further investigation?

The ECIDA adopted a
Whistleblower Policy in
March of 2012. The
Policy describes the
process for reporting
suspected fraudulent
activities and describes
the protections afforded
to individuals who report
suspected fraudulent
activities. The Policy
was re-adopted by the
Board of Directors on
3/25/20.

Did the Finance & Audit Committee obtain
information and training needed to
enhance the committee members’
understanding of the role of the
independent auditor, the risk management
process, internal controls, and appropriate
level of familiarity in financial reporting
standards and processes?

X

On 3/20/20, the
Committee reviewed an
article entitled, “The
Strategic Audit
Committee: A 2020
Preview" published by
the Deloitte Center for
Board Effectiveness.

13




Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation i Comments

(a)
(b)

(c)

10. Did the Finance & Audit Committee: X ] [1 | On 3/25/20, the Audit &
Report its actions and recommendations to Finance Corpmltte.e' _
the Board? reported on its activities

Report to the Board at least annually
regarding any changes to the Finance &

Audit Committee Charter? ) .
_ ) (1) Audit & Finance

Provide a self-evaluation to the Board on Committee self-

an annual basis? evaluation; {2) Audit &

Report to the Board at least annually on Finance Committee

the findings of its independent auditors? Charter; (3) draft 2019
financial statements
audited by Freed
Maxick, CPAs; (4)
Corporate Credit Card
Policy; (5) 2019 Public
Authorities Annual

to the ECIDA Board of
Directors. These
-activities included the:

Report; (6) Investment
& Deposit Policy; and
(7) 2019 Investment
Reports.

Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation

Other Self-Evaluation Notes

In addition to the above:

During its 3/9/20 meeting, the Committee reviewed drafts of the 2019 audited financial
statements for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC. The Committee also reviewed the 2019
PAAA Annual Report, 2019 Investment Reports, Investment & Deposit Policy, Finance
& Audit Committee Charter, Corporate Credlt Card Policy, and the 2019 Finance &
Audit Self-Evaluation.

During its 8/18/20 meeting, ECIDA staff discussed the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC budget
review process and the timelines for obtaining approval for those budgets. The
Committee also reviewed drafts of the 2021 ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC operating and
capital budgets and three-year forecasts. The Committee also voted to recommend a
bond issuance for D’ Youville College.

During its 9/16/20 meeting, the Committee voted to recommend a bond issuance for
Related Affordable/Elmwood Square Apartments. The Committee also approved drafts
of the 2021 ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC operating and capital budgets and three-year
forecasts for recommendation to their respective Boards. In addition, the Committee
approved an extension for Freed Maxick to provide auditing services to the ECIDA,
RDC, and ILDC for the year ending 12/31/2020.

During the 10/16/20 meeting, Freed Maxick reviewed their 2020 Audit Plan for
ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC.

14




AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUblTY INDUSTR!AL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORFQRATION

NEW YORK)

DECEMBER 31, 2020

15



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's Report 1-2
Management's Discussion and Analysis 3-7
Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position 8
9
Statements of Cash Flows 10
Notes to Financial Statements 11-16
Supplementary Information:
Combining Statement of Net Positjgr 17
Combining Statement of Revenue Ex Bns _ L.CH 18
INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE '
Independent Auditor's Repg ﬁ/on !ntemal Contr IEVer Financial Reporting
and on Compliance a/r;duOther Matters Based nan Audit of
Financial Statemerpg_ erformed ipAccordance W h _

Government Audm@ Standards/

Er-,
AT =
s, A0

16



BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2020
(UNAUDITED)

Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC) was incorporated for the purpose
of participating in the acquisition and development of industrial sites and to provide financial assistance for
the acquisition or renovation of fixed assets by industrial companies locating or expending in the County of
Erie, New York (the County). ILDC is considered a component unit of the Couggf.:;LDC also manages a
microenterprise revolving loan program on behalf of the County. Ny

As special-purpose government engaged in business-type activities, |lC
accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standdn
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Diseussi Analysis - for State and
Local Governments, ILDC is required to present management'’s discs

readers in understanding ILDC’s financial performance. £

activities of ECIDA as of and for the years ended Dece
readers to consider the information presented here in conju

siate of emergency declaration in New
svments, if needed. Erie County also

York State. ILDC was able to work with boripwess'to defer loan payme
made changes to the existing microenterpris ﬁa Te.hoost s ljibusinesses, rebranding it as a

1 developing brownfield property

at the former Bethlehem Steel site in Lackawann'ﬂ';_"'lsz,r_ ) y Aplated the purchase of land at the former
Angola Airport site in Evans, NY. o, P
A A i
Basic Overview of the FinaniCidl Stateime N
Included in this report ar&¥He foIIowin:.. apcial sta
RN dnsderg Liisg ey

1) Statements of Net Positiol E}-ﬁ'he statemérits of net position show the reader what ILDC owns

leferred oliflolws of resources) and what ILDC owes (liabilities and deferred inflows of
Ces)“The_differenca pétween ILDC's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
ed inflows Of resources ﬁel position) can be one way to measure ILDC’s financial position.
Juer time, increaset ﬁidecreaﬁgé in ILDC’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial
Redith is improving o deteriorating.

wes, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — This statement reports ILDC'’s
iperating revenues by major source along with operating and nonoperating
] f ‘ence between total revenues and expenses can be one way to measure
sresults for the year.

2)

3) Staterments of Cash Flows — This statement reports ILDC'’s cash flows from operating, capital and
related financing, and investing activities.

17



Financial Highlights

ILDC’s total net position increased by 13% from $6,260,000 in 2019 to $7,043,000 in 2020.

ILDC experienced an increase in net position of $783,000 in 2020 compared to a decrease of
$403,000 in 2019.

Operating revenues increased 449% from $71,000 in 2019 to $390,000 in 2020.

Operating expenses increased 179% from $239,000 in 2019 to $667,000 in 2020.

Condensed Comparative Financial Statements:

1. Statements of Net Position: ,/

@.,.

The following table (Table 1) presents condensed comparative financial |nf i ‘tlon and was derived from

the audited statements of net position of ILDC.

Table 1 )
Statements of Net Position at December 31
(Amounts in thousa

2020 2018

Assets: « 3

Cash $ 1,945 $ <08 835% $ 228

Grants receivable 514 1 9’1@ %2 (1 405) -73% 1,671

Loans receivable, net . %’6\% @) <3% 19

Other assets ’”“m,zss \V (281) -99% -

Land held for sale "ﬁﬂm 1,040 18% 6,531

Total assets S % “$ 8,307 $ 1,000 13% $ 8,449
Liabilities: st

Accounts payable #7i - p - 9 % 24 267% $ 1,416

Due to affiliate N SR 32 13% 209

Unearned revenue I 251 14% 161

Total liabifties— - = 307 15% 1,786
Net po g o

Resd (15) 7% 205

Unre: 6,837 6,039 798 13% 6,458

Total net 7,043 6,260 783 13% 6,663

i _‘(E ,?. "
Total liabilities ar "i@e{rposition $ 9397 $ 8,307 $ 1,090 13% $ 8,449

Cash - ILDC's cash balance increased 835% or $1,737,000 primarily due tfo a decrease in grants
receivables of $1,405,000 and an overall increase in net position of $783,000.

Grants Receivable — Grants receivable decreased 73% or $1,405,000 due to the receipt of $1,755,000
from Empire State Development for Phase |l of Bethiehem Steel land acquisition, combined with a new
receivable of $354,000 from National Grid for Western New York Agribusiness Park Planning.

Loans Receivable, net — Loans receivable relate to the microenterprise revolving loan fund, known as the

Erie County Business Development Fund. Loans receivable decreased slightly ($1,000) from 2019 to 2020,
due to payments on loan principal during the year.

18



Other Assets — Other assets include deposits on land purchases, affiliate receivables, and capital assets.
The decrease in other assets of $281,000 from 2019 to 2020 is due to decreases deposits on land
purchases ($155,000) and affiliate receivables ($125,000). The deposit on land at the end of 2019 was
used toward the purchase of property the Angola Airport site in 2020, and affiliate receivables were
collected. The increase in other assets between 2018 and 2019 related mainly to those same categories.

Land Held for Sale — Land held for sale consists of 138 acres of land at the former Bethiehem Steel

property in Lackawanna, NY and 236 acres of land at the former Angola Airport site in Evans, NY. In

connection with its economic development purpose, ILDC is working with several partners to return these

underutilized properties to productive use. The $1,040,000 increase in land held for sale from 2019 to 2020

reflects the purchase of the Evans, NY property. The decrease in land held for ;ﬁ;b‘from 2018 t0 2019 is
. L

due to a sale of property at the Lackawanna site. &>

Unearned Revenue — Unearned revenue relates to grants
revenue has not yet been recognized. The $251,000 increa;
the dollar amount of grants awarded. The increase from 2
2018.

2. Change in Net Position:

The following table (Table 2) presents conderféed; ¢
ILDC’s audited statements of revenues, expen

Change in Net Posit}ig@‘-_;fornthe Years\gndéd L

"5, BAmounts Y thi
£ ,’V}— ¥ . Ly
L ¥ o 3,
= S 2018
Revenue: G, AR
o $ 382 $ - $ 382 100% $ 83
- 34 (34) -100% -
q 8 37 (29) -78% 1
N
S $ 390 $ 71§ 319 449% $ 84
$ 477 $ 61 $ 416 682% $ 160
189 177 12 7% 114
1 1 - 0% -
Total expenses 667 239 428 179% 274
Operating loss (277) (168) (109) 65% (120)
Nonoperating revenue
Grant income 1,163 1,047 116 11% 3,131
Grant and loan loss expenses (103) (1,282) 1,179 -92% (3,011)
Change in net position $ 783 § (403) $ 1.186 -294% % (70)
5

19



3. Revenue Analysis:

Administrative Fees — ILDC is an issuer of tax-exempt bond financing for not-for-profit entities. These
bonds are not obligations of the ILDC or the County. ILDC receives bond issuance fees from borrowers for
providing this service. ILDC has a shared services agreement with ECIDA under which administrative and
staffing services are provided to ILDC in connection with bond issuances in exchange for the related bond
issuance fees received by ILDC. There was one bond issued in 2020, accounting for the increase in fees
from 2019. Similarly, there was one bond issued in 2018, which caused the decrease in fees for 2019.

Land Development and Other - Land development income arises from payments from third parties for

decrease from 2019 to 2020 is due mainly to a $19,000 loan recovery in 2019¢This is also the reason for
the increase from 2018 to 2019. L

4. Expense Analysis: éyl.'%y

Transfer to ECIDA — The amount transferred to ECIDA each yedft ' -s’é{wces agreement
consists of administrative fees for bond issuances plus charg tel.and overhead.

Charges for personnel and overhead are derived from ECID: 9 3LDC-related
pl'OjeCtS The $416,000 increase from 2019 to 2020 relateg'mai _ inistrative fee of $382,000 for
a bond issuance. The decrease from 2018 to 2019 relates¥p &n $83,06 Vbond issuance fee in 2018. There
were no ILDC bond issuances in 2019. =

General and Administrative — In 2020, gen expenses increased $12,000 from
$177, 000 to $189,000. The increase was due ce and property tax costs related

from $1 047 000 in 2019. This was due mainly

Sunt t‘ﬁmd the acquisition of the former Angola Airport site.
The decrease from 2018 to 28 '9”r'elates 6 grant incame recogmzed in 2018 related to the purchase of the
former Bethiehem Steel sit. >~ P

Srantexpen ses»rélae directly to the costs involved with certain projects

?from year to year based on activity. There was a $1,279,000 decrease

fam.2019 to 2020, due to the recognition of $750,000 of loan loss expense
; %alance of a forgivable loan.

5.Bud§&£;"" is: &

20



Table 3
Budget to Actual Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2020
(Amounts in thousands)

Budget to Actual Analysis:

Actual Budget $ Variance % Variance

Revenue:

Administrative fee income $ 382 $ - 8 382 100%

Land development and other 8 250 (242) -97%

>
Total revenue 390 250 1448 > 56%
V4

Expenses: A

Transfer to ECIDA 477 58 A iﬁn_ 722%

General and administrative 189 54 > 135 5\250%

Depreciation and other 1 - > 0%

Total expenses 667 554 450%

# Ny
g 5
Operating income (loss) (277) <‘137 ~ (414) -302%
Grant income 1,163 2,bﬁ.~;" (917) -44%
Grant expenses (303) (2,080 3 1,977 100%
Change in net position $ %0137 3 646 472%
- r T
3 Vi Y ?

Overall, ILDC exceeded its budgeteds C i 'M’ﬁasntlon for 2020 by $646,000. Total revenue was
$140,000, or 56%, above the n Je to administrative fees collected in 2020. Due to the
unpredictable nature of bong & 5 it _ does not mclude any administrative fees in its

budget. Total expenses were
budgeted amount, whil Jran|

B‘@erate revenue for continued operations, as well as grant i income

“mpon land sale i -.w e to

This financial report\fé designed to provide a general overview of ILDC’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the financial information provided in this report should be addressed to the CFO of ILDC
at (716) 856-6525. General information relating to ILDC can be found on ECIDA's website,
www.ecidany.com.

21



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,
2020 2019
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 1,944,866 207,639
Grants receivable 514,051 1,919,084
Loans receivable, current 11,643 13,812
Interest receivable = 70
Due from affiliate /{;} - 125,000
Deposit on land purchase / - 165,638
Total current assets YR, 2,421,243
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net 22,750
Capital assets, net 2,600
Land held for sale e 5,860,358
Total noncurrent assets 6,926,114 5,885,708
Total assets 9,396,674 8,306,951
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 32,648 8,885
Due to affiliate 283,473 250,630
Unearned revenue 2,038,052 1,787,518
Total liabilities 2,354,173 2,047,033
NET POSITION
Restricted 205,713 220,810
Unrestricted 5 6,836,788 6,039,108
Total net position 7,042,501 6,259,918
9,396,674 8,306,951

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

22



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2020 2019
Operating revenues:
Land development and other income $ 388,800 $ 17,500
Interest from loans 725 538
Loan loss recoveries - 18,750
Gain on land held for sale - 33,791
Total operating revenues 389,525 70,579
Ry
:s',/
Operating expenses: d
Transfer to Erie County Industrial Development Agency \477 095 61,470
General and administrative 188 ,403 176,446
Depreciation > %975 325
Total operating expenses 6, 238,241
N ;\
Operating loss (276,92%)‘&}% (167,662)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Grant income 1,162,960 1,046,975
Grant expenses {103,466) (1,281,875)
interest income 37 14
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - 1,059,531 (234,986)
Change in net position 782,583 (402,648)
Net position - beginning of year 6,259,918 6,662,566
7,042,501 $ 6,259,918

-
e

Net position - end of year <

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
9

23



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Land development and other income $ 388,800 $ 17,500

Transfers to Erie County Industrial Development Agency (319,252) (144,586)

Principal and interest received on loans 11,109 8,511

Loan disbursements (8,718) (25,281)

Loan loss recoveries - 18,750

Payments to vendors and affiliates / ' (164,640) (1,583,492)

Net cash used by operating activities P (93,701) (1,708,598)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES V/A‘\

Grant income ) \ %18 527 2,424,693

Grant expense Y _33 466) (1,281,975)
Acquisition of capital assets and land held for sale 1 (158,563)
Purchase of land held for sale -
Sale of land held for sale : - 704,105
Net cash provided by capital and financing activities 1,830,891 1,688,260
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES:
Interest income £ 37 14
Net cash provided by capital and fmancmg i IVt 37 14
Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,737,227 (20,324)
Cash - beginning of year 207,639 227,963
Cash - end of year $ 1,944,866 $ 207,639
Reconciliation of operating
to net cash usethy operat!
Operatlng Ioss “ e N $ (276,948) $ (167,662)
975 325
- (33,791)
596 (17,268)
in 70 (40)
18 ',»In’due from affiliate 125,000 (125,000)
) in accounts payable 23,763 (1,407,046)
Increase (decrea e) in due to affiliate 32,843 41,884
Net cash used by operating activities $ (93,701) $ (1,708,598)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
10

24



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (the ILDC) have
been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
ILDC's accounting policies are described below.

A.

REPORTING ENTITY

and to provide financial assistance for the acquisition or renovation

locating or expandlng in the County of Erie, New York (the County).

loan program which is dedicated to improving economic condltlonim
o

ILDC has related party relationships with Erie County Industgi ,Bevelopment Agenc'-"-_ IDA) and Buffalo and
Erie County Regional Development Corporatlon (RDC). Ali'thrée entities are managedgysthe same personnel.
These entities share the same mission, which is to prov 555& resources uétaencourage investment, innovation and
international trade, thereby creating a successful busiRgss- clima " that improves the quality of life for the

residents of the region. : \ >

In accordance with accounting standards, IL[X%
acting by and through the County Executive, i
result, the ILDC is included in the financial stat&n !

.__L‘. -
/ 2 - r"

= o

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Revenues from administrative 4ées, apd develop “income and interest on loans are reported as operating
revenues. Capital grants andrek j_ Ises are reps rted as nonoperating income.

by o ¥

_ _are vallable for use, it is the ILDC's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unresiet =; re‘_\ m&ﬂx@ ar&needed.

'ui‘ggse government engaged in business-type activities. Business-type
nanced inwhole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.
__J_\statements of the ILDC are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual b ef accounting. | Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are ,,;,_r;ed regardjéss of when the related cash transaction takes place.

value in exchange ude grants. Revenue from grants is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have beeh satisfied.

Nonexchange tran%wéwm@ *‘in which the ILDC gives or receives value without directly recelvmg or giving equal
INCOME TAXES

The ILDC is exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and the income
realized will not be subject to New York state corporate franchise tax. The ILDC does not believe that it has any
uncertain tax positions and has not recorded any unrecognized tax benefits, liability, penalties or interest.
GRANTS AND UNEARNED REVENUE

Grants are recognized at the time awarded, with timing differences resuiting from funds spent and earned.

ECIDA receives special project grants from various Federal, State and County governments. Grants received but
not expended are reported as unearned revenue.

"

25



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable aré presented net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. The ILDC maintains an allowance
for estimated uncollectible accounts which is based on an analysis of the loan porifolio and reflects an amount
that, in management’s judgment, is adequate to provide for potential loan losses. Loans are written off when, in
management’s judgment, no legal recourse is available to collect the amount owed.

Interest on loans receivable is accrued as required by the terms of the agreement; management considers the

probability of collection based on the current economic condition of the borrower <#gcrual of interest ceases when

=
o
a =
o
-
=
@
c
[e]

ofids, they are not reflected
Nees. from the borrower for
vaieh administrative and

borrower. Since ILDC has no obligation to repay the principal aifd
as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. ILDC s8¢

providing this service. ILDC also has a shared services :
staffmg services are provided to ILDC m connection

= }ammedlately upon issuance of the related
bond. The original value of tax—exempt bonds issued by IL ' w ;34 370,000 as of December 31, 2020 ($0 —

2019).
NET POSITION

itions wit _tralnts on the use either by (1) external groups such as
(" regulations of other governments; or (2) law through
Restrictions include amounts maintained in the Erie

Restricted - Consists of etm

States of America e ,' management to make estimates and assumptions. This affects the reported amounts
of assets and liabiliti®: aﬁd disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
as well as the reported‘amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On May 8, 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative
Guidance in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The effective dates of GASB Statements not yet implemented
by the ILDC have been updated below to reflect the impact of this Statement. There were no new GASB
Statements implemented by the ILDC for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The following are GASB Statements that have been issued recently and are currently being evaluated, by the
ILDC, for their potential impact in future years.

12

26



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement No. 87, Leases, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2022.
Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, which will
be effective for the year ending December 31, 2021.
Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2022.
Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2022,
Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, which will be effective for the year ending
December 31, 2021, except for paragraph 11b, which will be effective for the year ending December 31,
2022.
e Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and A
which will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2023. Ve
s Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangé ‘,
year ending December 31, 2023. &
e Statement No. 97, Certa/n Component Unit Cntena and Acc

jility Payment Arrangements,

LR

2022.

A. ASSETS
1. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

O SJjﬁ;am FDIC'-" ured commermal banks or trust companies

investment pollcy ILDC monies must be dép
§nancial Officer |s authorlzed to use interest beanng demand

located within the State. T J

3c .i%r dem,ii-’ oSS and ¥ “rtlflcates of deposits not covered by federal deposit
msurance Obllgatlons hat:ma —Wd"“éﬂ-asmllateral are obllgatlons of the United States and its agencies

the pn'{pal amount of ,gds invested or deposited; conformance with federal, state and other legal
R '“*and prov e .?éufﬂcnent |IqudIty of mvested funds |n order to meet obllgatlons as they become

Interest Rate R|s“u
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of investments will be affected by changing interest rates. The
ILDC's investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair
value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

The ILDC’s policy is to minimize the risk of loss due to failure of an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment to fulfill its obligations. The ILDC’s investment and deposit policy authorizes the reporting entity to
purchase the following types of investments:

Interest bearing demand accounts.
Certificates of deposit.

[
» Obligations of the United States Treasury and United States agencies.
» Obiligations of New York State and its localities.

13
27



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the reporting
entity may not recover its deposits. In accordance with the ILDC's investment and deposit policy, all deposits
of the ILDC including interest bearing demand accounts and certificates of deposit, in excess of the amount
insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (FDIC) shall be secured by a pledge of
securities with an aggregate value equal to 100% of the aggregate amount of deposits. The ILDC restricts
the securities to the following eligible items:

» Obligations issued, fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of pring '
States Treasury and United States agencies. ok
¢ Obligations issued or fuily insured or guaranteed by New York State 15

2. LOANS RECEIVABLE

a5 ~-2Q19f The full balance of the loan forgiven is

'__:'si*ﬁe a o%n%e for forgivable loan. The following is a

2020 2019
s 785,966 $ 786,562
750,000 750,000
35,966 36,562
11,643 13,812

24,323 $ 22,750

14

28



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At December 31, 2020, the Erie County BDF loan portfolio consisted of 2 loans that both bear an interest at rate
of 2% with varying payment terms.

Scheduled maturities of principal for these loans for the next five years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest

2021 $ 11,643 $ 607

2022 7,552 412

2023 7,091 271 s
2024 7,234 128 A
2025 2,446 s
Total $ 35,966

NOTE 3. GRANTS AND LAND HELD FOR SALE

Action Grant (UDAG) reflow fund in connectlon with ! :‘ on and redevelopment project at the former
Bethlehem Steel site in Lackawanna, New YorkY $55 ant. was earmarked for the purchase of real
property, with the remaining $1,000,000 to be useﬁjﬁr cary et ifg.and after property acquisition. Additional
funding of up to $700,000 for property acquisition was M BEIDA’s UDAG reflow fund in September 2017.
As of December 31, 2020, $6,338,416 of the $6,400,00! d ¥the purchase of real property and $706,126
of the $1,000,000 granted for carryinA_ w€s utilized. -

authonz '~ i‘.he execution of a $2,780,000 grant from Empire State

In connection with the land pwfthase, IL
int will be l.g to reimburse ECIDA. ILDC also resolved to remit to
e

Development (ESD). Proceads from this

ECIDA 50% of the net procég 'a{ecelve A p _'_r rthe futur e of portions of the Bethiehem Steel site acquired using
ECIDA grant funds, in an amoli{] mott Exee eﬂ%m As of December 31, 2020, $3,155,000 in reimbursements

have been made to ECIDA

: “Bethiehem Steel Site redevelopment, ILDC authorized the execution of a
Aoapital grant under the Buffalo Billion 1l initiative. Proceeds from this grant
rownfield property on the Site, purchase a right—of-way along the eastern

"”“’ILDC —;z' into a funding agreement with the ECIDA to accept $1,200,000 in the form of a
partially refundable gras % g '»,E’CIDA’s UDAG reflow fund in connection with a redevelopment project at the former
Angola Airport site in An % ew York. $900,000 of the grant was designated for the purchase of real property, with
the remaining $300,000 to be used for carrying costs during and after property acquisition. As of December 31, 2020,
$855,084 of the $900,000 granted for the purchase of real property and $19,409 of the $300,000 granted for carrying
costs was utilized.

In December 2018}

15

29



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a summary of grants receivable at December 31:

2020 2019
Bethlehem Steel Master Plan/GEIS - EDA $ 160,051 $ 164,084
Bethiehem Steel Acquisition Phase II-ESD - 1,755,000
WNY Agribusiness Park Planning-National Grid 354,000

$ 514,051

Total

for reimbursable costs of $286 as of December 31, 2020
a8 of December 31, 2020 ($250,630 —2019)

amounted to $95,045 ($61,470 /801"
(81,017 — 2019). Amounts Dugdo’

ealth Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a "Public Health Emergency
nce ___,__"rCh 10, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic. Actions taken around the world to
help mitigate the spread.of the goronavirus include restrictions on travel, and quarantines in certain areas, and forced
closures for certain typess ubi‘ ic places and businesses. Management has discussed the ILDC’s operations and
the impact of this event. ¥hey*have determined that this event will likely not have a significant impact on the assets or

operations of the ILDC.

On January 3
of International Cqni

NOTE 7. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Management has evaluated subsequent events through )
are available for issuance and have determined there a
generally accepted accounting principles.

XXX, 2021, which is the date the financial statements
n subsequent events that require disclosure under

16
30



SUPPLEMENTARY IN

31



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2020

Erie County
Operating BDF Program Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 1,762,554 § 182,312 $ 1,944,866
Grants receivable 514,051 - 514,051
Loans receivable, short-term - 411,643 11,643
Total current assets 2,276,605 é‘: 183,955 2,470,560
P
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net - 24,323
Capital assets, net 1,625 1,625
Land held for sale 6,900,166 6,900,166
Total noncurrent assets 6,90 1781 o 6,926,114
i & ~
Total assets $ 178, / ,' 218278 % 9,396,674
LIABILITIES G
Accounts payable : 4 239 § 32,648
Due to affiliate i g71,147 12,326 283,473
Unearned revenue 2,038,052 - 2,038,052
Total liabilities 41,608 - 12,565 2,354,173
NET POSITION
Restricted 205,713 205,713
Unrestricted > - 6,836,788
Total net position - ‘g{&,836,788 205,713 7,042,501
; »
Total liabilities and 9,178,396 § 218,278 $ 9,396,674

B

17
32



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK)

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Erie County
Operating BDF Program Total
Operating revenues:
L.and development and other income $ 388800 $ - $ 388,800
Interest from loans. - 725 725
Total operating revenues 388,800 725 389,525

Operating expenses:

Transfer to Erie County Industrial Development Agency 477,095
General and administrative 188,403
Depreciation 975
Total operating expenses 666,473
Operating loss (276,948)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Grant income - 1,162,960
Grant expenses - (103,466)
Interest income 4 37
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 4 1,059,531
Change in net position (15,097) 782,583
6,039,108 220,810 6,259,918

\ $ 6836788 $ 205713 $ 7,042,501

18

33



34



To the Members of the Board of Directors
Erie County Industrial Development Agency 4
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development CoMpiti
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation'_ -
95 Perry Street, Suite 403
Buffalo, New York 14203 .

Members of the Board:

We are pleased to present this report related A
Industnal Development Agency - DA), Bufi

nd Erie County Industrial Land Development
onal Development Corporation (RDC), as of and for
nmarizes certain matters required by professional
t responsibility for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC's financial

the year ended December
standards to be communi¢s
reporting process. &

Very truly yours,
Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.

35



CONTENTS

Required Communications

Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Management Letter

Exhibit A - Significant Written Communication Between Management and our Fi

Representation Letter

36



Required Communications

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditors Communications with Those Charge with
Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those
charged with governance. Consistent with this reqmrement the following summarizes our responsibilities regarding
the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant to your
responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.

Area Comments
Our Responsibilities with Regard to the Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally
Financial Statement Audit accepted in the United, States of America and

Govemment Auditing A£Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General gf the Umted States, have been
described to you indufarrangement letter dated January
11, 2021. Our S he financial statements do not

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of

the Financial Statement Audit timing of ou? audits and have

ithd u our identification of and planned audit
fignificant risks of material misstatement.

Accounting Policies and Practices

;{_ accepted principles, in certain
Stanc "anagement may select among
ve_abeounting practices. In our view, in such
Y management has selected the preferable

__";’—;:appropnateness of the accounting policies used by
" ECIDA/ILDC/RDC. In the current year, ECIDA/ILDC/RDC
implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. - 95,
Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative
Guidance.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions
or significant accounting policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus.

Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Summary information about the process used by
management in formulating particularly sensitive
accounting estimates and about our conclusions
regarding the reasonableness of those estimates is in the
attached “Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates.”

Basis of Accounting The financial statements were prepared on assumption
that the entities will continue as a going concern.

37



Required Communications (Continued)

Area Comments
Audit Adjustments Audit adjustments proposed by us and recorded by the
RDC are shown on the attached “Summary of Recorded
Audit Adjustments.”
Uncorrected Misstatement We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other

than misstatements that are clearly trivial.

Disagreements with Management We encountered no dlsagreements with management
over the application of sigfiificant accounting principles,
the basis for managemafit’s judgments on any significant
matters, the scope o audit, or significant disclosures
to be included in thef ial statements.

Consultations with Other Accountants {e Sosultations management had

Significant Issues Discussed with No _
Management i

Significant  Difficulties  Encountered in id Tvet Bncounter any significant difficulties in dealing
Performing the Audit L, Wi nt during the audit.

€ 'resentatlon letter provided to us by

Significant Written Communication Betwee!
tached as Exhibit A.

Management and Our Firm

38



Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management's current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience
about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to monitor throughout the
year the process used to determine and record these accounting estimates. The foliowing describes the significant

accounting estimates reflected in the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC's December 31, 2020, financial statements:

Estimate Accounting Policy

Management’s
Estimation Process

as| is for Our Conclusions on
AR asonableness of Estimate

Depreciation of
Property, Plant &
Equipment (ECIDA
& ILDC)

Management depreciates
property, plant and equipment
over the estimated lives of the
assets.

Allowance for
Uncollectible
Accounts

Management estimates
collectability of receivables

Investments
(ECIDA)

13 lly, ECIDA
nizes investments in
accordance with GASB
Statement No. 72, “Fair Value
Measurements” as it defines
the fair value and establishes
a valuation hierarchy for
disclosure of the inputs to
valuation used to measure fair
value. This hierarchy
prioritizes the inputs into three
broad levels of Level 1, 2 or 3.

based on knowledge of past \ 5

Useful lives were
assigned based o
ECIDA/ILDC's

life policy. &
Managem ftw

Management has
described the valuation
techniques used for
valuing investments at
fair value in the
financial statements
ECIDA Note 7.
Additionally,
management has
broken out the
investments into Level
1, 2 or 3 based upon

the valuation hierarchy.

39

e ”T he methods and Iives used to

Management'’s process to
estimate the allowance for
uncoliectibie accounts appears
reasonable.

Management's process to
evaluate fair value and establish
the fair value hierarchy of
investments appears reasonable.



Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Number Account NcName Debit Credit
AE# 1400.3 GF01 Accounts receivable - CARES Act 11,015
AJE #1 5850.4 GF01 Grant Income - CARES Act {11,015)

To record the administrative cost receivables for the CARE Act as of
12/31/2020

11,015)

40



Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The GASB has issued several statements not yet implemented by the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC. The ECIDA/ILDC/RDC’s
management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC's financial
statements. However, the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC plans to implement all standards by the required dates. The Statements
which might impact the ECIDA/ILDC/RDC are as follows:

Summary of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases

This Statement issued in June 2017 will be effective for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC with its fiscal year ending December 31,
2022. This Statement better meets the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement mcreases the usefulness of governments’ financial
Aha preVIoust were classified as

egBased on the payment provision of

the contract. It establishes a single quel for lease accounting based on theffotindational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, & g8e/is required to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is requifed ‘* "gge a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and g6p -
leasing activities. g

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting _ 8] _ ber 15, 2021. Earlier
application is encouraged. g y
Summary of GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for irfigrest € ost Incurred

Before the End of a Construction Period

This Statement issued in June 2018 will be e

This Statement establishes accouafint

_ lerest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
Such interest cost includes aI |

45 accounted for in accordance with the requirements of

;funtmg and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
gle ients, which are superseded by this Statement. This
i “ih&end of a constructlon period be recogmzed as an expense in

‘nanmal statements prepared using the current financial resources
icurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an
governmental fund accounting principles.

e v
measuremen faluus interest cos 0
expenditure on aba |s consnstent i

41



Recently Issued Accounting Standards (Continued)

Summary of GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations

This Statement issued in May 2019 will be effective for ECIDA/ILDC/RDC beginning with its fiscal year ending
December 31, 2021. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2)
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disciosures. This Statement achieves
those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing standards for accounting
and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.

The requirements of GASB Statement No. 91 are effective for financial periods j€ inr
Earlier application is encouraged. v

42



B FreedMaxickzeas.ec.

XXX, 2021

The Finance & Audit Committees, Boards of Directors, and Management
Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

In planning and performing our audits of the financial stateme -_; trial- -Development Agency
(ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corpgdss WGounty Industrial Land
Development Corporation (collectively, ECIDA/ILDC/RDC), b 167 Aci ivities, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards §ener :'

financial statements, but not for the purpose of gx
internal control. £

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the dg
employees, in the normal course of performmg ii
misstatements on a tlmely basis. A pat

55 {5 Mef cnency, or a combmatlon of deficiencies, in mternal
: '{natenal misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will

43



EXHIBIT A — SIGNIFICANT
BETWEEN MANAGE

FTEN COMMUNICATIC
NT AND OUR FIRM

44



Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp.

Investment Report
For the year ended December 31, 2020

45




Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development

Corporation
2020 Annual Investment Report

Purpose of Report:

Under Section 2925(6) of the Public Authorities Law, ILDC is required to prepare and
approve an annual Investment Report. The investment report is to include: ILDC’s
Investment Guidelines (see below), the results of the annual independent investment audit
(see below), a list of the total investment income received by the corporation and a list of
the fees, commissions or other charges paid to each investment banker, broker, agent,
dealer and advisor rendering investment associated services to the corporation since the
last Investment Report.

The attached schedule details the corporation’s investment income and related fees for the
year ended December 31, 2020 and were approved by the ILDC Board of Directors on
March 24, 2021.

Investment Guidelines:

In accordance with Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law, ILDC is required to adopt
Investment Guidelines which detail its operative policy and instructions to staff regarding
the investing, monitoring and reporting of funds of the Agency. ILDC has elected to
follow the deposit and investment restrictions contained in Sections 10 and 11 of the
General Municipal Law as a “best practice”.

The Investment Guidelines were approved by the ILDC Board of Directors on March 24,
2021 and are posted on the ECIDA website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-
corporate-policies. The Investment Guidelines are consistent with the prior Guidelines
adopted on March 25, 2020.

Investment Audit:

ILDC’s auditors have audited the corporation’s compliance with the Investment
Guidelines for Public Authorities. In their report dated March XX, 2021 Freed Maxick
CPAs have indicated that ILDC complied, in all material respects, with these Investment
Guidelines.

46



unoooe Bupjoays DAY jeseues)
Junogoe ueot asudisjualoniy 4ag Aunod sug

-

asoding pajouysay

"sa8} Aue Jo uoonpap ay} o} Joud si pue 0Z0Z J8qLUB0S( JO YIUOW Y} IO} 8je) pazilenuue ay) SI ajey 1SaIs)uj YL e

- $ 98 $ 998'vv6'L $ 6€9'20Z §
- ¥e %E0°0 #S6°29.°1 eiLe'le
- $ 28 %E00 zigezsl 9ze'98l
0202 %20 ozuz/LereL 0Z0Z/L/L
$994 awoauj| ey aouejeg /o aduejeg /O
JusuysaAu) jsaiay
[ 0z0Z |

:s9jO0N
sueg 19N Buposyo ¢
yueg 18I Bunioayg 1
uonpnmsu| ad£] junosoy

|e1oueul

020Z ‘1€ Joqwasag papua Jesk ay) 104
poday Jusunsaau) fenuuy

(@) uonesodion yuswdojeaaq pue jeuysnpuj Ajunoa oLy 9 ojeyng

47



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDASTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

To: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC Board of Directors
From: Brenda McDuffie, Governance Committee Chair
Date: March 24, 2021

Re: Governance Committee Report

In accordance with its Committee Charter, the Governance Committee is required to “report its
actions and recommendations to the Board at each regular meeting of the Board following a
meeting of the Governance Committee and when otherwise requested by the Board”. This report is
prepared to satisfy this requirement.

The ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Governance Committee met on March 17, 2021. Committece members
present were: Brenda McDuffie, Chair, Howard Johnson, Brian Kulpa, Ken Schoetz, David State,
and Maria Whyte. The following items were reviewed:

1) 2020 PAAA Annual Report
The Governance Committee reviewed the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC 2020 PAAA Annual Report. No
changes were recommended. The PAAA Annual Report will be reviewed by the full Boards
during the March 24, 2021 Board meetings.

2) 2020 Board of Directors’ Self-Evaluation
The Governance Committee reviewed the summary sheets for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC
Board self-evaluations and discussed the importance of open dialogue. They did not note any
major issues. The Governance Committee Chair will forward the summary sheets to the
Authorities Budget Office (ABO) as required.

3) 2020 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation
The Governance Committee reviewed the 2020 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation. The
evaluation documented the activities of the Governance Committee during 2020.

4) Annual Re-Adoption of Policies, Charters & Guidelines
The Governance Committee reviewed the following policies of the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC:
¢  Whistleblower Policy
Governance Committee Charter
Property Disposition Guidelines
Real Property Acquisition Policy
Defense & Indemnification Policy
Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy
Travel, Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy
Statement of the Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of the Directors
Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members
Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest Policy

The Agency’s CFO informed the Committee that ECIDA General Counsel Harris Beach
reviewed the above referenced policies and did not recommend any changes. The ABO did not
publish any new recommended guidance for any of these policies. No changes were
recommended by the Committee. The Boards will review these policies during the March 24,

95 B9yl SheardSmieetitilrs Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 » fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

48



5) Adoption of Policies. Charters & Guidelines
ECIDA staff and General Counsel Harris Beach recommended revision/adoption of the
following policies:
¢ Procurement Policy
¢ Sexual Harassment Policy
e ECIDA Employee Compensation Policy

The Procurement Policy is expanded to include more specific language regarding Minority &
Women Business Enterprise procurements of goods and services and considerations when
requests for proposals are solicited. Metrics will be set annually as part of the Agency’s goals
and performance measures. The Sexual Harassment Policy has been in place at the Agency for
a number of years and is being brought to the Board to formalize Policy with Board approval.
The policy meets all requirements under Federal and New York State guidelines. The ECIDA
Employee Compensation Policy has a modification as a result of the Compensation Committee
meeting in October 2020. A sentence was added noting “Employee compensation is subject to
the overall profitability and economic stability of the ECIDA.” The Committee supported the
changes to the Procurement Policy and ECIDA Employee Compensation Policy and formal
adoption of the Sexual Harassment Policy. The policies will be reviewed by the Boards during
the March 24, 2021 Board meetings.

6) PARIS Report Update
The Governance Committee received an update on the status of the ABO’s reporting
requirements through the Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS). The
Agency is on track to complete the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC PARIS reports on or before the
March 31, 2021 deadline.

7) Board Member PAAA Training Update
The Governance Committee received an update on the status of the required ABO board
member training. One board member received training during 2020. There was also a period of
time whereby no training sessions were held as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Agency’s Compliance Officer regularly forwards the training schedule to board members who
have not had the required training and to those who have not had training within the last three

years.

8) Results of 2020 Performance Measures
The Governance Committee reviewed the results of the ECIDA/RDC/ILDC’s 2020
Performance Measures. They did not recommend any changes. The results of the 2020
Performance Measures will be reviewed by the Boards during the March 24, 2021 Board
meetings.

9) Mission Statement and 2021 Performance Measures

The Governance Committee met on January 28, 2021 and February 9, 2021 to discuss the
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Mission Statement and 2021 Performance Measures. During these
meetings the Committee revised several metrics, added a goal and metrics related to the Covid-
19 Pandemic Response, and incorporated metrics related to minority & women business
enterprises (MWBEs). The Committee reviewed the most current draft that incorporated
changes made as a result of previous meetings, and did not recommend any additional changes.
The 2021 Mission Statement & Performance Measures will be reviewed by the Boards during
the March 24, 2021 Board meetings.

49



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC)

2020 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation
Responsibilities of the Governance Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Governance Committee, as mandated under Section 2824(7) of the New
York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) keeping the Board informed of current
best governance practices; (ii) reviewing corporate governance trends; (iii) updating the Agency’s corporate
governance principles; and (iv) advising those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the skills
and experiences necessary required of potential Board members.

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation ' Comments

1. Are the members of the Governance X | | O
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and are individuals appointed
to the Governance Committee
knowledgeable, or have expressed a
wilingness to become knowledgeable, in
matters pertaining to governance?

2. |Is each member of the Governance = 1| O
Committee an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Governance Committee
members, who are members of the
Agency, comply with the conflict of interest
provisions applicable to public officers
under Article 18 of the New York General
Municipal Law?

3. Didthe Governance Committee meet a X | O | O | The Governance Committee met on
minimum of once (1) each calendar year? 2/10/20 and 3/10/20.
4. Were meeting notices and agendas X | O | O

prepared for each meeting and provided to
Governance Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

50



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Comments

5. Did the Governance Committee develop

the Agency’s governance practices, which
should address transparency,
independence, accountability, fiduciary
responsibilities and management
oversight?

X

See Questions #6-#9 below.

Did the Governance Committee develop a
statement of the competencies and
personal attributes required of Board
members to assist those authorized to
appoint members to the Board in
identifying qualified individuals (it being
acknowledged that membership in the
Agency is determined pursuant to Section
891-a of the General Municipal Law)?

A Statement of the Competencies
and Personal Attributes is posted on
the ECIDA website. it was approved
by the ECIDA Board of Directors on
2/16/10. Revisions to this document
were not necessary in 2020.

Did the Governance Committee develop
and recommend to the Board any revisions
to the number and/or structure of Board
committees?

No additional committees were
recommended by the Governance
Committee in 2020.

Did the Governance Committee develop
and provide recommendations to the
Board regarding Board member education,
including new member orientation and
regularly scheduled Board member
training to be obtained from state-
approved trainers as required under
Section 2824(2) of the New York Public
Authorities Law?

New Board members attend an
orientation session hosted by ECIDA
staff and are provided with a New
Member Orientation Manual.

As of 12/31/20, 17 of 19 ECIDA/RDC
Board members and 5 of 7 ILDC
Board members have received the
PAAA required training. All Board
members who have not received the
training received notifications
throughout the year regarding PAAA
training session dates.

Did the Governance Committee develop,
review and recommend to the Board the
adoption and/or revisions to the following:

(i) the Agency’s Code of Ethics.

(i) written policies regarding conflicts of
interest.

51




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Comments

(i) written policies regarding the
protection of whistleblowers from
retaliation.

(iv) equal opportunity and affirmative
action policies.

(v) written policies regarding procurement
of goods and services, including policies
relating to the disclosure of persons who
attempt to influence the Agency’s
procurement process.

(vi) written policies regarding the
disposition of real and personal property
and the acquisitiorr of property.

(vii) committee charters, including this
Charter.

(viii) any other policies or documents
relating to the governance of the
Agency, including rules and
procedures for conducting the
business of the Agency’s Board,
including the Agency’s Bylaws. The
Governance Committee will oversee
the implementation and effectiveness
of the Bylaws and other governance
documents and recommend
modifications to the Board as
necessary or appropriate.

ltems i) & ii) are included in the
ECIDA Code of Ethics and Conflict of
Interest Policy. The Governance
Committee reviewed the Code of
Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policy,
as amended during its 3/10/20
Committee meeting. The Code was
adopted by the full Board during its
3/25/20 Board meeting.

(iii) In 2012, the Governance
Committee approved a formal
Whistleblower Policy. The
Committee did not recommend any
changes. The Policy was re-adopted
by the full Board during its meeting
on 3/25/20.

iv) The ECIDA’s EEO policy is
included in the Personnel Handbook
and the Procurement Policy.

v) The ECIDA Procurement Policy
was re-adopted by the full Board
during its 3/25/20 Board meeting.

vi) The ECIDA Property Disposition
Guidelines were reviewed by the
Governance Committee on 3/10/20.
It was re-adopted by the full Board
during its 3/25/20 Board meeting.

vii) The ECIDA Governance
Committee Charter was reviewed by
the Governance Committee on
3/10/20. It was re-adopted by the full
Board during its 3/25/20 Board
meeting.

viii) The Governance Committee did
not approve any additional policies in
2020.

52




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

X | O | O
10. Did the Governance Committee:
(i) report its actions and i) & i) As stated above, all policies/
recommendations to the Board at each guidelines referenced above were
regular meeting of the Board following a adopted or re-adopted by the Board
meeting of the Governance Committee on 3/25/20.
and when otherwise requested by the
Board.
(i) report to the Board, at least annually,
regarding any proposed changes to this
Charter.
(i) provide a self-evaluation of the iii) On 3/10/20, the Committee
Governance Committee’s functions to the performed a Self-Evaluation for the
Board on an annual basis. calendar year 2019 and provided a
status report to the Board on 3/25/20.

53



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Other Self-Evaluation Notes

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

In March 2020, the Governance Committee performed a 2019 Board Member Self-Evaluation for
the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC boards. The Committee discussed the results of these evaluations
during the 3/25/20 board meeting.

In addition to the above referenced policies, the Governance Committee discussed the following
items during its meeting on 3/10/20: (1) 2019 Performance Measures Report & Results; (2) 2020
Mission Statement & Performance Measures; (3) 2019 PAAA Annual Report; (4) Property
Acquisition Policy; (5) Defense & Indemnification Policy; (6) Board Member Compensation; (7)
Reimbursement & Attendance Policy; (8) ECIDA Compensation Policy; (9) Travel Conferences
Meals & Entertainment Policy; and (10) Statement of the Duties & Responsibilities of the Board
of Directors. The Committee did not recommend changes. The full Board approved these
documents/policies during its 3/25/20 Board meeting.

The ECIDA’s Compliance Officer provided an update on the status of the ECIDA’s Public
Authority Reporting Information System (PARIS) report to the Committee on 3/10/20.

During the Governance Committee meeting on 3/10/20, ECIDA’s Compliance Officer reported
that there were no violations of the Agency’s Local Labor Policy in 2019.

During its 2/10/20 and 3/10/20 Governance Committee meetings, the Governance Committee,
ECIDA staff and counsel discussed the results of ECIDA’s 2019 Performance Measures.

During its 2/10/20 and 3/10/20 Governance Committee meetings, the Governance Committee,
ECIDA staff and counsel discussed the results of ECIDA Mission Statement and 2020
Performance Measure.

54



2020 ILDC Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Somewhat | Somewhat

Criteria Agree Agree Disagree | Disagree
# # # #
Board members have a shared understanding 4
of the mission and purpose of the Authority.
The policies, practices and decisions of the 4
Board are always consistent with this mission.
Board members comprehend their role and 4

fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and 4
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.

The Board sets clear and measurable 4
performance goals for the Authority that
contribute to accomplishing its mission.

The decisions made by Board members are 3 1
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence, pressure
or self-interest.

Individual Board members communicate 4
effectively with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues.

Board members are knowledgeable about the 3 1
Authority’s programs, financial statements,
reporting requirements, and other transactions.

The Board meets to review and approve all 4
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.

The Board knows the statutory obligations of 4
the Authority and if the Authority is in
compliance with state law.

Board and committee meetings facilitate open, 4
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members.

Board members have sufficient opportunity to 4
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

Individual Board members feel empowered to 4
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of 4
the CEO and other executive staff, including
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.

The Board has identified the areas of most risk 4
to the Authority and works with management to |
implement risk mitigation strategies before [
problems occur.

Board members demonstrate leadership and 4
vision and work respectfully with each other.

Authority: Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp.; Date Completed: 2/22/2021

55



